
  
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, APRIL 3, 2012 
8:00 A.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

8:00 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

March 20, 2012, Regular Meeting 
March 20, 2012, Closed Session 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 3, 2012 AGENDA  13 
 4  PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE AMBULANCE FRANCHISE 

AGREEMENT 
MR. CRAIG SULLIVAN 15 

8:05 5  MAINTENANCE MATTERS 
A. Presentation of Lighting Upgrade Proposal 
B. Bid Award Request for Paving Repairs 

 
MR. PATRICK MORGAN 
MR. ROBERT MARSH 

 
25 
51 

8:10 6  PROPOSED CONTRACT BETWEEN DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL 
SERVICES AND APPALCART 

MR. JIM ATKINSON 57 

8:15 7  PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS 
A. Road Names Public Hearing Request 
B. Bond Claim – Bid Award for Subdivision Paving 

MR. JOE FURMAN  
61 
65 

8:20 8  TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Report 
B. Refunds and Releases 
C. Board of Equalization and Review Schedule 

MR. KELVIN BYRD  
79 
79 
79 

8:25 9  FINANCE MATTERS 
A. Budget Amendments 
B. JCPC Budget Amendments 
C. Proposed Audit Contract for FY 2012 

MS. MARGARET PIERCE  
81 
83 
87 

8:30 10  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Blowing Rock VFD Request for Support of Lease 

Purchase Agreement 
B. Watauga Humane Society Funding Request 
C. Boards & Commissions 
D. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
101 

 
105 
107 
109 

8:35 11  PUBLIC COMMENT  112 
9:35 12  BREAK  112 
9:40 13  CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 112 

10:00 14  ADJOURN   
 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
March 20, 2012, Regular Meeting 
March 20, 2012, Closed Session  
 
 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, MARCH 20, 2012 

 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
March 20, 2012, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
  PRESENT: Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
    Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
    David Blust, Commissioner 
    Jim Deal, Commissioner [arrived at 5:40 P.M. due to out-of-town travel] 
    Tim Futrelle, Commissioner 

Stacy C. Eggers, IV, County Attorney 
    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M. 
 
Commissioner Blust opened the meeting with a prayer and Vice-Chairman Gable led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the March 5, 2012, special meeting 
and March 6, 2012, regular and closed session minutes. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the March 5, 
2012, special meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Deal) 

 
County Manager Geouque requested that the March 6, 2012, regular meeting minutes include an 
amendment to the motion under Bid Award Request for Aquatic Center Repairs as follows 
(additions in red bold and deletions in strikethrough): 
 

“Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Chairman Miller, moved to accept the lowest 
responsible and responsive bid from MBI Builders, LLC, including Alternate 1 (which 
allows the pool to remain filled while being repaired), in the total amount of $50,300 
$50,700 and 33 days of pool closure. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust)” 

DRAFT 
040312 BCC Meeting

2



 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the March 6, 2012, 
regular meeting minutes as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Deal) 

 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the March 6, 2012, 
closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Deal) 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the March 20, 2012, agenda. 
 
County Manager Geouque requested to add possible action after the scheduled closed session. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Vice-Chairman Miller, moved to approve the March 20, 
2012, agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Deal) 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE MATTERS 

A. Award Request for Retiring Officer 
Captain Kelly Redmon stated that Sergeant Richard Aldridge was retiring April 1, 2012, and the 
Sheriff’s Office wished to award his respective side arm and badge to Officer Aldridge upon his 
retirement and requested that the Board set the price of the side arm at $1.  Per G. S. 20-187.2, 
governing bodies of a law enforcement agency may award a retiring member his/her service side 
arm, upon request, at a price determined by the governing body.  Captain Redmon stated that 
Sergeant Aldridge would be required to purchase a permit prior to purchasing the side arm. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to award Sergeant Richard 
Aldridge, upon retirement, his respective badge and side arm, at a set price of $1. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Deal) 
 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

3



B. Request for Declaration of Surplus and Sale – WCSO K-9 
Captain Redmon requested to declare a K-9 (police dog), referenced as “Chesska,” as surplus 
and sell the dog to its handler, Wes Hawkins, for a fee of $1.00.  Captain Redmon stated that, 
due to the dog’s age and health issues, it was no longer of use to the Sheriff’s Office.  G. S. 
160A-266 allowed for the dog to be sold for a negotiated price upon adoption of such a 
resolution and after being advertised for ten days.  Chairman Miller stated that, as the dog was a 
trained K-9, it therefore needed to be with someone who knew how to handle it. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to adopt the resolution 
declaring the K-9 surplus and to direct to staff to follow through with the sale of “Chesska” to 
Wes Hawkins per G. S. 160A-266 as recommended by Captain Redmon. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Deal) 

BOARD OF EDUCATION REQUEST FOR LOTTERY FUNDS 
Watauga County School’s Finance Director, Ms. Ly Marze, requested approval of the following 
State funding applications: 
 
Public School Building Capital Fund/North Carolina Education Lottery: 
• Metal roof installation at Cove Creek Elementary School, in the amount of $880,000, with an 

estimated project beginning date of April 2012, and completion date of November 2012. 
• Basement renovation at Valle Crucis Elementary School, in the amount of $35,000, with an 

estimated project beginning date of June 2012, and completion date of August 2012. 
 

Public School Building Capital Fund/ADM (Corporate Tax) Fund: 
• Renovation of center building flat roof at Hardin Park Elementary School, in the amount of 

$85,000, with an estimated project beginning date of June 2012, and completion date of 
August 2012. 

• Renovation of middle school wing flat roof at Parkway Elementary School, in the amount of 
$52,000, with an estimated project beginning date of June 2012, and completion date of 
August 2012. 

 

The total amount requested for the four projects was $1,052,000.  The proposed projects were 
discussed at the recent annual retreat and the School Board had requested a $100,000 match from 
the County for two of the proposals.  Ms. Marze stated that the School Board now planned to use 
their fund balance to pay the local match and, therefore, no funds were being requested from the 
County. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the Board of 
Education’s four state funding applications as presented by Ms. Marze. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Deal) 

040312 BCC Meeting

4



SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT MATTERS 

A. Proposed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Transferring the Division of Soil and 
Water Conservation to the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Sciences from the 
Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR)  

County Manager Geouque stated that, due to recent legislative changes, the Division of Soil and 
Water Conservation had been moved from the Department of Environment and Natural 
Resources (DENR) to the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Sciences.  The proposed 
amendment required the Memorandum of Understanding to reflect the new reporting change. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that the new Memorandum of Understanding was consistent with 
the previous one. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to adopt the Memorandum of 
Understanding transferring the Division of Soil and Water Conservation to the Department of 
Agriculture and Consumer Sciences as presented by the County Manager. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Deal) 

B. Proposed Use of Bill Edmisten Memorial Fund 
County Manager Geouque stated that in January of 2003, a memorial fund honoring Mr. Bill 
Edmisten was established to be used to further farmland preservation and was to be administered 
by the Watauga County Farmland Preservation Advisory Board.  The Advisory Board has 
requested the memorial funds be used for Watauga County students to attend workshops and 
training sessions related to natural resources and other relevant courses. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to allow funds from the Bill 
Edmisten Memorial to be used for Watauga students to attend workshop and training sessions 
related to natural resources. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Deal) 

 

[Clerk’s Note:  Commissioner Deal arrived at 5:40 P.M.] 

FINANCE MATTERS 

A. Budget Amendments 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, reviewed the following budget amendments: 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
663740-381000 Sale of Recycled Scrap  $15,000 
667420-433000 
667420-433100              Utilities-Electricity $15,000  

040312 BCC Meeting

5



 

The amendment recognized additional revenue from the sale of recycled scrap and additional 
expenditures for electricity in the Solid Waste Fund.  Additional expenditures are due to the 
delay in the Gas to Energy Project reaching its full capacity from the original projected date of 
the fall of 2011. 
[Clerk’s Note:  The above Account # was misquoted as presented at the meeting; however, the correct # is in bold as 
shown above.] 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
143531-323000 Administrative Cost Reimbursements  $7,500 
145310-469101 DSS Professional Services – Legal Fees $7,500  
    

The amendment recognized additional state reimbursement for legal fees. 
    

Account # Description Debit Credit 
143531-323000 Administrative Cost Reimbursements  $19,000 
145410-440002 Low Income Home Energy Assistance $19,000  
    

The amendment recognized an increase in funding allocations from the state for energy program 
funds. 
    

Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the budget 
amendments as presented. 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

B. Presentation of Smoky Mountain Center’s Quarterly Financial Report 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, presented the Smoky Mountain Center Quarterly Report 
as required by State Statute. 
 
No action was required, nor taken. 

C. Presentation of Smoky Mountain Center’s Audited Fiscal Monitoring Report 
Ms. Pierce presented the financial monitoring reports for Smoky Mountain Center for the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2011, as required by General Statute. 
 
No action was required, nor taken. 

TOP ‘O BOONE ROAD MAINTENANCE REQUEST 
Mr. Joe Furman, Planning and Inspections Director, stated that Mr. Rowe with the Top O’ Boone 
subdivision could not be present to present this request due to a prior commitment.  Mr. Furman 
stated that the County-owned property within the subdivision on which two emergency 
communications towers, requiring occasional access, were located.  Top O’ Boone has provided 
a proposal requesting each lot owner pay a one-time $100 fee for gate construction in addition to 
a $50 annual road maintenance fee.  Likewise, homeowners have been requested to pay a one-
time $200 fee for gate construction in addition to a $150 annual road maintenance fee.  The 
subdivision has requested the County contribute the one-time fee of $250 and $150 each year 

040312 BCC Meeting

6



thereafter for road maintenance due to the location of the communication towers.  Mr. Furman 
stated that he was not advocating on behalf of the subdivision.  In the past, the County had 
maintained and used Fire Tower Road to access the tower; however Fire Tower Road was not 
currently passable and had been costly to the County over the years to maintain.  Mr. Furman 
stated that the $150 annual road maintenance fee was a small amount to spend to ensure well-
maintained access to the towers. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that the County was responsible for dues for property owned 
within a subdivision unless it was a tax foreclosed property; however, the Top ‘O Boone did not 
have legal authority to lock the County out of the subdivision. 
 
Top O’ Boone will be required to meet the standards set forth in the recently adopted Watauga 
County Gated Community Ordinance in relations to gate installation.   
  
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to authorize a one-time 
allocation of $200 to Top O’ Boone for gate installation and to authorize a one-time payment of 
$150 to Top O’ Boone for the road maintenance fee for Fiscal Year 2012. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Blust, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-2(Miller, Gable) 

 
 [Clerk’s Note:  The public hearing was held after Miscellaneous Administrative Matters in order to comply with the 
advertised time of 6:00 P.M.] 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Proposed Proclamation Declaring May 14-19, 2012, as Community Pride Week 
County Manager Geouque presented a proposed proclamation declaring the week of May 14-19, 
2012, as Community Pride Week in Watauga County.  The County Manager stated that this 
event was conducted annually by Sanitation staff and has proved to be very popular with the 
County's citizens. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to adopt the proclamation as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

B. Proposed State Highway Patrol Lease Renewal  
County Manager Geouque stated that the current lease for office space at the Law Enforcement 
with the North Carolina Highway Patrol was set to expire April 1, 2012.  The requested renewal 
was in the amount of $12.49 per square foot and for a term of five years.  The space requested 
was 365 square feet. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that the lease presented by the State was a standard agreement. 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

7



Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the lease renewal 
with the North Carolina Highway Patrol for 365 square feet of office space at $12.49 per square 
foot for a five-year term. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

C. Public Hearing Request to Allow Citizen Comment on Proposed Refinancing for the New 
High School  

County Manager Geouque stated that a public hearing was required to allow citizen comment on 
the refinancing of debt for the new high school and, therefore, requested the Board set the public 
hearing for April 17, 2012, at 6:00 PM.  A proposed resolution authorizing the financing and 
other relevant matters pertaining to the financing was to be presented to the Board for 
consideration after the public hearing was closed.  
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to schedule a public hearing 
to allow citizen comment on the proposed refinancing of debt for the new high school on April 
17, 2012, at 6:00 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

D. Proposal for Lease of Parking Spaces at the Old High School 
County Manager Geouque state that The Art of Living Foundation International Center for 
Meditation and Well Being had a grand inauguration of its new facility planned for June 29, 
2012.  The Center requested to lease the old high school parking lot for $300 a day beginning on 
June 28th and ending the morning of July 4th for a total amount of $1,800 as it offered viable off-
site parking due to its proximity to the Center.  The Center proposed that their 
members/volunteers would be at the lot the afternoon and into the evening of June 28th and again 
on Wednesday, July 4th as vehicles were entering and exiting.  The gates were to be closed 
during the rental days between June 28th and the morning of July 4th. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that the old high school building would need to be posted and 
access restricted to cover liability issues. 
 
County Manager Geouque added that the County should not be liable for any damage to vehicles 
during the term of the lease. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to direct the County Attorney to 
draft a lease with The Art of Living Foundation International Center for Meditation and Well 
Being from June 28, 2012, through July 4, 2012, in the amount of $300 per day with the 
responsibility for all liability on The Art of Living Foundation International Center for 
Meditation and Well Being. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

040312 BCC Meeting

8



E. Boards and Commissions 
County Manager Geouque stated that, during their regular Town Council meeting held on 
February 14, the Blowing Rock Town Council recommended Ms. Brenda Fairbetter to serve as 
the ETJ member of their Planning Board and Mr. Terry Story to serve as the ETJ member of 
their Board of Adjustment.  Ms. Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board, stated that the Blowing Rock 
Town Clerk had requested a blank volunteer application to distribute to Ms. Fairbetter and Mr. 
Story; however, the completed applications had not been returned to date. 
 
By consensus, the Blowing Rock ETJ appointments were tabled to allow time for receipt and 
review of volunteer application forms from Ms. Fairbetter and Mr. Story. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated, that at their February 2012 meeting, the AppalCART Advisory 
Board recommended the following slate of officers be officially appointed to their Board:  Mr. 
Jerry Moretz (at-large member); Mr. Greg Lovins (ASU representative); Ms. Angie Boitnotte 
(at-large member); Mr. David Blust (Board of Commissioners representative); Mr. Donald Ray 
(user representative); Mr. Barry Sauls (ASU representative); Mr. Andy Ball (Town of Boone 
representative); and Ms. Jeannine Taylor (Human Service Agency representative). 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to appoint Mr. Jerry Moretz (at-
large member); Mr. Greg Lovins (ASU representative); Ms. Angie Boitnotte (at-large member); 
Mr. David Blust (Board of Commissioners representative); Mr. Donald Ray (user 
representative); Mr. Barry Sauls (ASU representative); Mr. Andy Ball (Town of Boone 
representative); and Ms. Jeannine Taylor (Human Service Agency representative) to the 
AppalCART Advisory Board. 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

F. Announcements 
County Manager Geouque made the following announcements:  
 

• The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners’ (NCACC) District Meeting is 
scheduled for April 12, 2012, at the Holiday Inn Express in Wilkesboro.  Tentative 
meeting times are 5:30 P.M. to 8:00 P.M. 
 

• Aaron’s of Boone wishes to host a “Council Night” to allow the Boone Town Council 
and the Watauga County Board of Commissioners to become acquainted with Aaron’s 
Sales and Lease and see first-hand the services they provide to the community.  Tentative 
dates suggested are:  April 3rd @ 7:00 P.M., April 4th @ 5:00 P.M., April 13th @ 7:00 
P.M., and April 14th @ 7:00 P.M.  
 

By consensus, the Board agreed to direct staff to offer appreciation to Aaron’s of Boone 
for the invitation and to let the Town of Boone choose the date.  

 
• The Appalachian District Health Department invites the Board to attend a pre-event and 

event on Thursday, March 22, 2012, featuring a presentation regarding aerobic exercise 
and its relationship to the brain.  The event is sponsored through the “Communities 
Putting Prevention to Work” grant. 

040312 BCC Meeting

9



 
• An Incident Command System (ICS) Overview for Executives/Senior Officials training is 

scheduled on March 28, 2012, from 4:00 P.M. to 6:00 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board 
Room.  

 
• At the last Board meeting, the date of April 23, 2012, from 12:00 noon to 1:30 P.M. was 

selected to tour the new Watauga Humane Society facility which was recently 
constructed through a partnership with the County.  Humane Society staff was not 
available on that date and have suggested the dates of April 27th or 28th to conduct the 
tour. 
 

By consensus, the Board agreed to schedule the tour for Friday, April 27, 2012. 
 

• Appalachian State would like to invite the Commissioners, School Board members, and 
Town Council members, to campus on May 7, 2012, from 9:00 A.M. to 2:00 P.M.  The 
purpose of the meeting would be to provide an update on major activities taking place on 
campus such as construction projects, strategic priorities, state funding and its impact on 
the campus and major initiatives involving the local community.  The day would consist 
of a tour, lunch, and meeting with University officials.  They would like for this to 
become an annual event. 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON A PROPOSED COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) SMALL CITIES CATALYST PROGRAM 
APPLICATION ON BEHALF OF THE HOSPITALITY HOUSE 
A public hearing was scheduled to allow public comment on the County’s potential application 
for $250,000 through the Community Development Block Grant Small Cities Catalyst Program 
on behalf of the Hospitality House for the purchase of property adjacent to their Rock Haven 
Facility as presented to the Board at their March 6, 2012, regular meeting. 
 
Chairman Miller opened the public hearing at 6:01 P.M. to allow citizen comment on the 
proposed Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Small Cities Catalyst Program 
application on behalf of the Hospitality House. 
 
There being no public comment, Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved 
to declare the public hearing closed at 6:02 P.M.  
 
No action was required at this time as an additional public hearing was scheduled for April 17, 
2012, as required by the grant program. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

040312 BCC Meeting

10



CLOSED SESSION 
At 6:03 P.M., Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Chairman Miller, moved to resume the open meeting at 
7:24 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

POSSIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 
As Womble Carlyle Sandridge and Rice, LLP had represented the County in past matters, a 
proposed Waiver of Conflict was requested for execution to allow the Firm to represent BB&T 
in the County’s current refinancing of the new high school.  The Firm’s previous representation 
to Watauga County was not related to the current refinancing. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to execute a Waiver of Conflict 
allowing Womble Carlyle Sandridge and Rice, LLP to represent BB&T during the current 
refinancing of the new high school loans. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

ADJOURN 
Chairman Miller adjourned the meeting at 7:25 P.M. 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

11



Blank Page 
 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 3, 2012, AGENDA 
 
 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

13



Blank Page 
 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE AMBULANCE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Per Commissioner direction from the annual retreat, Mr. Craig Sullivan will present changes to 
the Ambulance Franchise Agreement.  The proposed contract provides much needed updates to 
reflect technology and training changes and the new station location.  The contract has an 
effective date of January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2019, which allows Watauga Medics to 
expand operations and invest in new communication technology to improve the overall services 
in the County.  In extending the contract, the County was able to negotiate a one (1) year waiver 
of the CPI escalator for the first year of the contract.   
 
North Carolina General Statute 153A-46 requires a grant, renewal, extension, or amendment of 
any franchise to be passed at two regular meetings of the board of commissioners before it may 
be adopted.  As this is the first reading, no action is required at this time and the contract will be 
presented to the Board at the April 17, 2012 meeting for adoption. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

15



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

AMBULANCE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AMBULANCE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (hereinafter “Agreement). Is made 
and entered onto this the 1st. day of January 2010 2013 by and between WATAUGA 
COUNTY, a body politic, organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the 
State of North Carolina (hereinafter the County’), and WATAUGA MEDICS, INC., a 
North Carolina corporation, (hereinafter “Franchisee”).  

 

WHEREAS, effective October 4, 1999, the Watauga County Board of Commissioners, 
by authority contained in NC.G.S, 153A-250, adopted Ordinance Number XXX, titled 
Watauga County Ambulance Franchise Ordinance’ (hereinafter “the Ordinance”)’ and 

 

WHEREAS, County and Franchisee executed an Ambulance Franchise Agreement dated 
November 16, 2004 pursuant to the Watauga County Ambulance Franchise Ordinance, 
Ordinance Number XXX, pursuant to the authority granted to the County by NCGS 153-
250; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to said Ordinance, the County issued a Request For Proposal 
(hereinafter “the RFP”) soliciting bids and specifying certain minimum conditions of any 
franchise to be issued pursuant thereto; and 

 

WHEREAS, Craig J. Sullivan on behalf of Watauga Medics, Inc. submitted a written bid 
entitled Bid Proposal’ for Watauga County Ambulance Service’ (hereinafter the Bid”) 
pursuant to said RFP; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County, at its November 1, 2004 meeting resolved to accept the Bid 
Option 3-1 contained in said bid, to wit: that the bidder will provide service (as further 
specified below) with the County to provide an annual subsidy of as set forth below in 
monthly installment; 

 

WHEREAS, an issue has arisen between County and Franchisee as to the interpretation 
of the subsidy payments to be paid by the County to Franchisee as provided in section 30 
of the Agreement; and  

 

WHEREAS; at the February 20, 2007 meeting of the Watauga County Board of County 
Commissioners, the County agreed to amend the agreement to clarify and restated the 
subsidy payment that were paid or are to be paid pursuant to the Agreement; and 

 

040312 BCC Meeting

16



WHEREAS, the parties have discussed an extension of the Agreement between the 
County and Franchisee in an effort to lock-in costs to the County and allow for the 
Franchisee to expand his operations to improve services in Watauga County; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual benefits and 
obligations set forth below, the County and the Franchisee agree as follows: 

1. The County does hereby grant unto Franchisee a non-exclusive franchise for 
the operation of an ambulance service for the provision of emergency and non- 
emergency medical transport services, in accordance with the Ordinance, the RFP, the 
bid and this Agreement for a period of five seven years. 

2. This franchise may not be sold, assigned or transferred nor may it in any way 
vest in any person, firm or corporation, other than the Franchisee and any such sale, 
transfer or assignment shall cause this franchise to terminate immediately, at the opinion 
of Watauga County. 

3. Any change in legal or equitable ownership of Franchisee its corporate shares, 
or any of its equipment shall immediately terminate the Franchise, at the option of 
Watauga County. 

4. The initial term of the Franchise shall be from 12:00 AM. on January 1, 2010 
2013 and through and including the 31st day of December, 2014 2019 Either party, for 
any reason, may with or without cause terminate this agreement and the Franchise upon 
one hundred eighty (180) calendar days written notice to the other party, unless sooner 
terminated for reasons set forth in the Ordinance or by agreement of the parties hereto. 

5. At the end of the aforesaid term, unless the parties agree otherwise in writing or 
either party has given notice of termination as aforesaid, the Franchise and all of the 
terms of this Agreement (subject to any amendments as may be entered into) shall be 
automatically renewed for continuing one year terms. 

6. The Franchise shall provide all personnel, vehicles, supplies and equipment to 
provide all emergency and non-emergency ambulance service necessary in all parts of 
Watauga County on a 24 hour per day, 7 day per week basis, at not less than an EMT-
Paramedic level of service (except so long as an agreement for such acceptable to the 
County is in place, the Franchise may provide ambulance service to the Flat Springs area 
of Avery County in exchange for Avery County’s providing pursuant to agreement with 
Franchise ambulance  service to the Town of Beech Mountain in Watauga County).  Each 
ambulance of the Franchisee shall be available to render assistance to all portions of 
Watauga County. 

7. Franchisee shall keep two (2) two-wheel drive ambulances and two (2) four-
wheel drive ambulances fully equipped, licensed and available for emergency and non- 
emergency service at all times, subject to routine maintenance down time. Franchisee 
shall keep two of the ambulances manned and available on a 24 hour per day, 7 day per 
week basis and a third ambulance manned and available nine hours per day, Monday 
through Saturday, six (6) days per week.   Not less than two (2) ambulances will be kept 
within the County at all times for services pursuant to this Agreement, one of which will 
be manned and the other of which will be manned or will have personnel on call for 
immediate service. Each ambulance necessary to meet the foregoing requirements shall 
have less than 50,000 miles on it at the time initially put in service by Franchisee. The 
Franchisee will immediately notify the county in writing of any additions or deletions to 
its inventory of operational ambulances.  Franchise shall employ a fourth ambulance and 

040312 BCC Meeting

17



crew to work seven days per week, twelve hours per day.  In additional new service for 
Watauga County, and the Franchisee shall strive not to place or dispatch said fourth crew 
for service outside the territorial jurisdiction of Watauga County except for emergency 
transports, when any of Franchisee’s other crew is away on a routine transport.  As of 
July 1, 2005 Franchisee will provide an additional on call crew to respond to out of 
county emergency transports between the hours of 8:00pm and 8:00am seven (7) days per 
week.   

8. The Franchisee shall maintain not less than two (2) bases, the first of which 
will be provided by the County as set forth below. The Franchisee must bear all 
responsibility for finding other station(s) and the costs associated with acquiring, 
equipping, and maintaining such. 

9. Franchisee’s first base of operations will be located at the facilities owned by 
the County at 921 West King Street. Boone, North Carolina 28607, or such other location 
as may be provided by the County. The County will make available, at no charge to 
Franchisee, said the facilities currently located at 921 West King Street, Boone, North 
Carolina 28607, specifically consisting of 5,263 square feet, including a garage, offices, 
sleeping area and a training room. The County shall provide property and casualty hazard 
insurance for the structure at said location. The Franchisee must bear all utilities, 
maintenance, medical supplies, equipment and other necessary expenses associated with 
said facilities provided by the County. Franchisee’s obligation to provide maintenance to 
the structure shall be limited to repairs of ordinary wear and tear to the reasonable 
satisfaction of the County. Franchisee’s two propane heaters and the lift located in the 
bay area of the building shall remain the property of Franchisee, so long as Franchisee 
repairs any damage to the building caused by their removal.   

 

10. The Franchisee shall maintain a second base to be initially located at 231 
Deerfield Road, 133 Longvue Dr. Boone, North Carolina and the Franchisee shall be 
solely responsible for providing all things necessary for operation of the service at the 
second base, including but not limited to the building, utilities, maintenance, medical 
supplies, equipment and necessary operational expenses associated with the facilities. 

11. Each ambulance used by Franchisee must be in compliance with all applicable 
Federal, State, and local laws relating to personnel, health, safety, equipment, vehicle 
design, and sanitation. Franchisee shall keep the County provided with a copy of the 
current State certification for each ambulance owned or operated by Franchisee. 

12. The Franchisee shall be responsible for all future capital purchase and all 
operational, including (but not limited to) salaries, employee benefits and expenses, 
insurance, mobile operational costs, and all other fees, expenses, and charges necessary to 
remain in compliance with the County’s ordinance and the franchise granted to the 
Franchisee. 

13. The Franchisee shall provide the county with a list of all of its equipment 
which is in service, on not less than an annual basis, and the Franchisee shall assure that 
all of its equipment in use will be removed from service once it becomes obsolete or 
needs to be replaced due to normal wear and tear. 

14. Each ambulance of Franchisee shall be equipped with an eight (8) channel 
VHF radio. Frequencies shall be assigned by the Communications Center designated by 
the County. Franchisee shall relay all ambulance movements to the Communications 
Center designated by the County, via two-way radio. 

 

040312 BCC Meeting

18



15. The Franchisee shall assure that its EMS personnel have access to operational 
Franchisee-issued pagers, or other communication devices along with accurate phone 
lists are on file  to notify said personnel if the and that adequate numbers of said 
personnel remain available to respond when the regular squads of the Franchisee are 
unable to handle the volume of calls that may come in from time from time. 

 
16. The Franchisee shall at all times meet the following performance standards: 

 
a. The average response time for an ambulance, calculated on a Monthly 

basis, shall not exceed ten minutes. 
b. The Franchisee shall place no required ambulance in service for initial 

operation that has more than 50,000 miles. 

17. The Franchisee shall not allow any paramedic to practice in Watauga County 
until he or she has passed an oral examination given by a panel of the Medical Director 
and unless he or she holds current certifications in advanced training courses specified by 
the Medical Director.  It will be the responsibility of the Franchisee to coordinate with the 
Watauga Medical Center and Watauga County to ensure a qualified Medical Director 
remains active in the system. 

18. The Franchisee shall enter into and assure the existence of mutual aid 
agreements with ambulance services in counties adjoining Watauga County to provide 
assistance in the event of disaster or other special need, said agreements to be at the sole 
expense of the Franchisee. Additionally, the Franchisee shall implement and keep in 
place a Reserve Program, creating a county-wide manpower bank to be available in the 
event of a disaster or other special need. All training will be open to Reserves and any 
other Said Reserve Program shall be open to all individuals with NC Basic EMT 
Certification, or higher, who also meet Franchisees other reasonably developed standards. 
The Franchisee shall provide a training and make all reasonable efforts to provide ‘ride 
time” to said reserves, to keep their skills current. 

19. Franchisee shall enter into mutual aid agreements to have and make available 
assistance of and to all volunteer rescue squads in the County when requested by the 
County, the Franchisee or the volunteer rescue squads. 

20. The Franchisee shall make its resources available to Watauga County 
Emergency Management Office during its emergency activities, and during any declared 
State of Emergency shall work in conjunction with the Emergency Operations Center. 

21. The Franchisee shall oversee a First Responder program, which the 
Franchisee will assist the local fire departments with the needs of the program shall 
assure is kept in place. The Franchisee shall assist in the development and 
implementation of  operating guidelines for the program, and shall restock the supplies 
(not to include capital equipment or any drugs such as epi pens) used in the services of 
the First Responder.  Further, the Franchisee shall coordinate continuing education 
requests and other training for all First Responders, as appropriate, but not to necessarily 
include the education or training necessary for certification or recertification. All of the 
foregoing shall be provided to the program and First Responders at no cost to the First 
Responders or their sponsoring agency or agencies, all with no additional cost to the 
County. 

22. The Franchisee shall operate on a fee for services basis, and shall only issue 
the following charges (when incurred) at the following rates, which are hereby approved 
by the County: 

Comment [C1]: This is a little outdated and I do 
still issue radios/pagers to some but cell phones are 
our main way of calling pple in!  
 

Comment [C2]: State law changed in 2002 and 
2009 that removed the “sponser Hospital” term 
completely see: 10A NCAC 13P .0401 
COMPONENTS OF MEDICAL OVERSIGHT 
FOR EMS SYSTEMS

040312 BCC Meeting

19



A. Rates for BLS calls:       $300.00 

B. Rates for ALS calls: (non-emergency)    $350.00 
    (Emergency)     $385.00 
    ALS II:     $550.00 
  
 
C. Charge per mile:      $8.25  $8.50 

    
D. Waiting time per hour (after first hour)    $25.00 
 
E.  No transport calls: 
 

A charge of $50.00 is authorized for no transport calls when Franchisee responds to assist 
patients who just need assistance or patients who have initiated a 911 call and have 
changed their mind once Franchisee arrived. No charge under this subsection may be 
assessed when a 911 call is made by a bystander without the request of the injured party. 

 

No other fees, expenses, or charges may be made without prior Resolution of the 
County’s Board of Commissioners approving such. 

23. The Franchisee shall be responsible for billing and collection of its fees, 
charges and expenses. The Franchisee must submit for payment from, third party payers 
and accept assignment of Medicare and Medicaid Franchisee shall maintain accurate 
records of its charges and reimbursements from Medicare and other sources of all charges 
pursuant to the foregoing authorized increases, and shall compile and maintain such 
information in a form useful to the County, which information shall be shared from time 
to time with the County, as the County may desire. 

24. Franchisee shall maintain all records required by Sect XII of the Ordinance 
and shall submit to the County by the 15th of the month following each quarter a data 
sheet containing all of the information specified in subsection f of said Section of the 
Ordinance The Franchisee shall submit an annual report containing all of the information 
required by said Section and further specified by subsection g of said Section by the 15th 
day of the month following the last quarter of each year. The Franchisee shall maintain 
the aforesaid records in an organized fashion, and allow the county full access to said 
information as the County deems appropriate. By the 15th of May of each year, the 
Franchisee shall submit to the County manager a budget of how it intends to spend the 
County’s funds in the upcoming fiscal year, and within ninety (90) days of the end of the 
Franchisee’s fiscal year, the Franchisee shall furnish the County a full and complete 
certified audit of Franchisee’s operations conducting by a CPA in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards of Franchises’s operations, which shall include a 
fully audited financial statement of the Franchisee. The Franchisees fiscal year shall be 
from 1 January to 31 December of each year. 

25. Each year, Franchisee shall provide the County a detailed explanation of its 
billing policies, sufficient to allow County to fully understand the billing methods and 
practices of the Franchisee. 

26. Franchisee shall fully allow the County to inspect all records, premises and 
equipment of the Franchisee at any time in order to confirm and insure compliance with 
the ordinance and the franchise granted herein. 

Comment [C3]: This is keeping with the current 
Medicare allowable mileage rates.

040312 BCC Meeting

20



27. In providing ambulance service as described herein the Franchisee shall 
comply with all laws of the United States, the State of North Carolina and the County of 
Watauga, including rules and regulations promulgated by the Medical Care Commission 
and the NC Medical Board, and resolutions and ordinances of the Watauga County Board 
of Commissioners. Further, the Franchisee shall abide by all applicable US and North 
Carolina Labor laws, including, but not limited to, Occupational Safety and Health 
regulations, Fair Labor Standards Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act and 
regulations pursuant thereto. The County shall have the right to inspect all records 
pertaining to these labor laws and ensure compliance by the Franchisee. The Franchisee 
shall maintain records on all employee training conducted pursuant to Occupational 
Safety and Health regulations and shall make these available to the County upon request 

28. Franchisee shall maintain in place an escrow account, a surety bond, an 
irrevocable letter of credit, or other guarantee or undertaking satisfactory to the County 
attorney, in an amount equal to the amount of the contract subsidy applicable to any one 
hundred eighty (180) day period following the date such obligation may arise to assure 
payment to the County for any liability of the Franchisee to the County arising out of this 
Agreement, of the Ordinance, or of Franchisee’s operation, and to pay for any substitute 
performance the County may cause to be provided upon Franchisees default in 
performance hereunder or under the Ordinance. 

29. The Franchisee agrees and acknowledges that the above-referenced facilities 
of the County located at 921 West King Street, Boone, North Carolina are fully adequate 
facilities for the housing of their base operation at said location. 

30. For the period of this agreement, the County shall prepay to Franchisee an 
annual subsidy in monthly installments as follows: 

Jan. 1, 2013-Dec. 31, 2013: $789,118.13 
Jan. 1, 2014-Dec. 31, 2014 $789,118.13 + CPI adjustment 
Jan. 1, 2015-Dec. 31, 2015 Previous Years amount + CPI adjustment 
Jan. 1, 2016-Dec. 31, 2016 Previous Years amount + CPI adjustment 
Jan. 1, 2017-Dec. 31, 2017 Previous Years amount + CPI adjustment 
Jan. 1, 2018-Dec. 31, 2018 Previous Years amount + CPI adjustment 
Jan. 1, 2019-Dec. 31, 2019 Previous Years amount + CPI adjustment 
 
 
 (this amount to be adjusted by the CPI as explained below.   Each year there after 

the previous years amount will be adjusted as explained below. 

   On each January 1, commencing on January 1, 2010 2014 the agreed-upon county 
subsidy shall be adjusted and revised as follows: 

 

a. 60 percent of the adjustment shall reflect the annual increase or decrease of the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI), South Urban Size D C, as published by the US 
Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. 

b. 20 percent of the adjustment shall reflect the annual increase or decrease of the 
CPI, Medical Care Services as published by the US Department of Labor, Bureau 
of Labor Statistics. 

c.  20 percent of the adjustment shall reflect the annual increase or decrease of the 
CPI, Transportation, as published by the US Department if Labor, Bureau of 
Labor Statistics. 

 

040312 BCC Meeting

21



In the event the CPI components produce a negative adjustment once totaled The 
Subsidy amount will not be adjusted.  In the event the CPI components produce a 
percentage greater than 6% the annual increase will be 6% plus on-half (50%) of the 
amount over 6% up to 10% (For Example, if the CPI escalator is computed at 7.4% the 
annual increase would  be 6.7% or 6% + .50 x 1.4 = 6.7). Any amount over 10% will not 
be considered for adjustment ie the maximum adjustment will be 8%. Or 6% + .50 x 4% 
= 8%). 

31. The County will calculate the adjustment based upon the most recent 
November annual report of Franchisee as compared to the report of the previous 
November. (For example, the January 1, 2010, 2014 adjustment will reflect the CPI 
changes between November 2008  2012 and November 2009 2013.) 

32. Franchisee shall at all times during the existence of the Franchise, keep In full 
force and effect the insurance coverage as required by Section X of the Ordinance 
entitled “Insurance” and all insurance required by law, including liability insurance on its 
vehicles and workers’ compensation coverage for its personnel. Franchisee shall provide 
proof of coverage to the county and to assure that each insurance policy contains 
provisions that assure that the County receives at least 90 days prior notice from each 
carrier of any lapses, cancellations, denials, changes or limitations in coverage. The 
County shall be shown as an additional insured on all of Franchisee’s liability insurance. 

33. The Franchisee shall indemnify and hold harmless the County and its officers 
and employees from and against all suits, actions, liability, claims, demands, judgments, 
recoveries or expenses, including court costs and attorney’s fees, against or incurred by 
the County on account of or in any way connected with or arising from any claim of 
injury, loss or damage which arises out of or is in any manner connected with 
Franchisee’s operations; including, but not limited to any claim or injury, loss or damage, 
suit, action, liability, claim, demand, judgment, recovery, or expense caused or alleged to 
be caused in whole or in part by any negligent act, omission, error, professional error, 
mistake, accident or other fault of the Franchisee, any subcontractor of the Franchisee, or 
an officer, employee or agent of the Franchisee. 

34. Franchisee is to provide ambulance service as an independent contractor and 
neither Franchise nor any of its personnel shall be an employee, agent or representative of 
the County in any way. 

35. The Franchisee and its agents, contractors and subcontractors shall not 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, ancestry, age, sex, religion 
or disability in any policy or practice and Franchisee shall assure that any agreements or 
practices it enters into or engages in expressly provide for such nondiscrimination. 

36. This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the RFP which Franchisee 
acknowledges; to the Ordinance and all amendments as may be made thereto, which 
Franchisee is and will remain familiar with and agrees to fully abide by; to the bid by 
Watauga Medics, Inc., and to the County’s resolutions of November 1, 2004 accepting 
said bid. Except to the extent this Agreement imposes standards above the minimum 
standards specified in the Ordinance, in the event of any inconsistency among or between 
the foregoing, the Ordinance shall control and as between this Agreement and the RFP, 
the Bid, and the Resolution, this Agreement shall control, but all of the terms of the 
aforesaid documents not inconsistent with the other documents shall remain in and have 
full force and effect, 

37. Should any portion of this Agreement be ruled or determined invalid, such 
invalidity shall not effect the enforceability of the remaining portions hereof. This 

040312 BCC Meeting

22



Agreement shall not be amended or modified except in writing. signed by all parties 
hereto, with the County’s consent to such modification to be only by prior resolution of 
its Board of Commissioner  

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the said parties hereto have hereunto caused this 
instrument to be signed in their names by their duly authorized officers.

 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

23



Blank Page 
 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

24



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 

A.  Presentation of Lighting Upgrade Proposal 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Mr. Patrick Morgan representing 2nd Power, Inc., will present the Board with an opportunity to 
upgrade existing lighting fixtures at the Human Services parking lot with LED solar powered 
fixtures.  Fifteen fixtures will be converted at a total cost of $19,995.  Mr. Marsh recommends that if 
the Board is interested, that an RFP be sent out to receive competitive pricing.  Staff has concerns as 
to whether or not the life expectancy of the solar fixtures will be long enough to see a return on 
investment and the potential for the units to not have enough sunlight/backup power to provide 
service.   
 
Staff requests direction from the Board. 
 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

25



040312 BCC Meeting

26



040312 BCC Meeting

27



040312 BCC Meeting

28



040312 BCC Meeting

29



040312 BCC Meeting

30



040312 BCC Meeting

31



040312 BCC Meeting

32



040312 BCC Meeting

33



040312 BCC Meeting

34



040312 BCC Meeting

35



040312 BCC Meeting

36



040312 BCC Meeting

37



040312 BCC Meeting

38



040312 BCC Meeting

39



040312 BCC Meeting

40



040312 BCC Meeting

41



040312 BCC Meeting

42



040312 BCC Meeting

43



040312 BCC Meeting

44



040312 BCC Meeting

45



040312 BCC Meeting

46



040312 BCC Meeting

47



040312 BCC Meeting

48



040312 BCC Meeting

49



Blank Page 
 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

50



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 

B.  Bid Award Request for Paving Repairs 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Bids were solicited for paving repairs as identified by the County’s paving and repair schedule.  
Proposals are to remove deteriorating sections and repair and patch these areas located at the West 
Annex (Cooperative Extension).  A final two (2) inch asphalt layer will be placed over the repaired 
areas and the entire existing lot.  Three bids were received with Moretz Paving being the lowest 
bidder in the amount of $31,340. 
 
Adequate funds are budgeted for this project.  Staff requests the Board approve the bid submitted by 
Moretz Paving in the amount of $31,340. 
 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

51



040312 BCC Meeting

52



040312 BCC Meeting

53



040312 BCC Meeting

54



040312 BCC Meeting

55



040312 BCC Meeting

56



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

PROPOSED CONTRACT BETWEEN DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES AND 
APPALCART 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Medical Assistance 
has mandated that all Department of Social Services obtain a written contract from the vendors 
providing Non-Emergency Medicaid covered services.  Failure to adopt the plan will cause the 
County to be out of compliance with Division of Medical Assistance requirements and lose 
funding for transportation services for eligible clients.   
 
The contract includes all the requirements mandated by the Division of Medical Assistance and 
staff recommends the Board approve the contract as presented.   
 
 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

57



Transportation Agreement

This Agreement, effective this , by and between

Agency Name:

1st day of 

Address:

Contact Person:

Phone:

Fax:

Email:

Rate Per Mile:

NORTH CAROLINA AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, effective this  and1st day of by and between

hereinafter referred to as

in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herin, the  agree as follows:

Section 1 Purpose of Agreement

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the continued implementation of a consolidated, coordinated Public Transportation Project in

pursuant to the

conditions and mutual undertakings of the parties as to the manner in which 

Community Transportation Service Plan of December 2001, and to state the terms,

will provide transportation services for 

Section  2 Adoption of Required Provisions 

This Agreement incorporates the required provisions of the North Carolina Department of Transportation Agreement under Project Number

andand subsequesnt agreements between the North Carolina Department of Transportation

Section  3 Scope of Work

1.  The normal hours of operation shall be between 6:00a.m. and 6:00p.m. Monday through Friday:

 will provide regulary scheduled transportation services to as may be mutually agreed upon.

at least one [ 1 ] business day in advance of any revisions in scheduling, or of any[b]  

additions or deletions of pasengers.  Failure to provide this notification of changes or cancellations may result in being billed for the services

scheduled, unless adverse weather is the cause

Flexible scheduling for special activities may be implemented as deemed appropriate as long as at least three [3] days notice is given

Scheduling and routing of the vehicles will be coordinated with Appalachian State University and routing  

requirements of the general public

The routes and schedules may be modified from time to time by 

provision of service to the citizens of

2. Insurance, Vehicles & Drivers:

agency with respect to liability insurance, vehicle inspections, and drivers including licencing, background checks & drug & alcohol testing.

 and 

[a]  

shall notify 

 in order to provide for a more effective and efficient

 will be responsible for meeting the requirements of the North Carolina Department  of Transportation, FTA and the contracted

[d]  

[c]  

[e]  

[a]  

and

Rate Per Hour:

AppalCART    Providing Public Transportation Since 1981

P O Box 2357 ~ 274 Winklers Creek Rd ~ Boone NC 28607 ~ Phone (828) 264-2280 ~  Fax (828) 264-0107

website: www.appalcart.com ~ email: info@appalcart.com

April 1, 2012

WATAUGA COUNTY

132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite C, Boone, NC 28607

828-265-8100

828-265-7638

jim.atkinson@watgov.org

1.40

0.00

Dept. Of Social Services

Jim Atkinson

AppalCART

April 1, 2012 AppalCART

DEPT. OF SOCIAL SERVICES Dept. Of Social Services

AppalCART Dept. Of Social Services

Watauga County Watauga County

AppalCART

AppalCART

Dept. Of Social Services

Dept. Of Social Services

AppalCART11-CT-007

AppalCART

AppalCART

AppalCART

AppalCART

Dept. Of Social Services

Watauga County

AppalCART

NOW, THEREFORE, 

Insurance Company:  Insurance Policy Number: Ncacc L&P Rmp Lp-Ap-473-10 Changes will be reported to: [b]  Dept. Of Social Services

It is agreed that coverage limits will meet the amount required for common carrier-passenger vehicles by the North Carolina Utilities Commission.

Will require a MVR for all new applicants to cover at least the last three years prior to the date of the application.  Driving records [c]  AppalCART

will be checked at least yearly thereafter.  Drivers must have no more than two chargable accidents or moving violations in the past three years

and must not have a driver's license suspension or revocation within the past five years.

Contracts with Wolfe Data who will run a criminal background check through the North Carolina Law Enforcement Division or the  [d]  AppalCART

National Crime Information Center (NCIC) if not a resident of NC (for at least 5 consecutive years), prior to employment and quarterly thereafter.

040312 BCC Meeting

58



3. Lien holder: 

will ensure that the vehicles will be equipped, maintained, operated and managed in a safe, efficient and businesslike manner,

and the parties do further agree that the driver shall have the final control regarding safety and whether or not the routes should

be followed on days of bad weather.

5. Drivers' Training:  

first aid, defensive driving, and preventive vehicle maintenance.

6. Service Standards Paramenter: 

communication radio systems

7. Period of Performance:

 shall commence performance of this contract on the 1st day of  

contract as appropriate to complete the terms, conditions and required provisions of the North Carolina Department of Transportation

Unit Rate.  By mutual agreement, the unit rate of said service shall be 

and shall complete, renew or amend this 

under Project Number

per vehicle mile and per vehicle service hour.

Mileage rates may change with major changes in price of fuel.  All passenger routes will be billed at 100% of actual cost at the above

unit rate.

will submit an itemized invoice to on a monthy basis, payment 

terms are thirty [30]days net.

Cost Documentation.  All costs charged to including any approved services performed by 

shall be supported by properly executed payrolls, time records, invoices, cancelled checks, deposit slips or vouchers evidencing 

in detail the nature and property of the charges.

8. Record Retention

shall permit North Carolina Department of Transportation/Public Transportation Division and: 

 to inspect all work, materials, payrolls and other data and records with regard to the Project and  to audit the books, records and

 accounts of the Authority that pertain to this contract.

Section 4 Termination of Agreement

In the event of noncompliance with any provision of the Agreement, either party may terminate the Agreement by giving the other party sixty (60) days

advance written notice. IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties here to have executed this Agreement the day and year first above wirtten

By: By:

AppalCART Board Chair

Attest: Attest:

Clerk to the AppalCART Board

 shall be the Public Transportation Division of North Carolina Department of Transportation

4. Vehicle Operation:

 will provide drivers training to ensure that all drivers have adequate knowledge of passenger safety, CPR

Method of Invoicing. 

shall retain all records pertaining to this contract for a period of three [3] years from the date of this agreement

First lien holder on all vehicles titled to [a]  

[a]  

[a]  

Vehicles will run the approved routes on established schedules within [+ or -] ten [10] minutes, and be equipped with land transportation[a]  

[a]  

[b]  

[c]  

[d]  

[a]  

[b]  

an

AppalCART

AppalCART

AppalCART

AppalCART

AppalCART

AppalCART

April 1, 2012

11-CT-007

1.40 0.00

AppalCART

AppalCART

AppalCART

Dept. Of Social Services

Jim Atkinson

Director

Transportation Coordinator

Miranda Norris

Joanna Wilcox

Dept. Of Social Services

Jerry C Moretz

9. Complaint Procedures: 

 office where they will be documented and resolved.Passenger complaints should be reported to the [a]  AppalCART

10. Management Names: 

website, any changes will be reported toNames of Board Members & Managers are posted and updated on the [a]  AppalCART

11. Reporting, Invoicing, Etc.: 

Will use the billing codes specified by[a]  AppalCART

has an obligation that no more than one quarter of one percent of all trips be missed by

12. Exclusions: 

becomes excluded from participation in this contract[a]  AppalCARTIf

Dept. Of Social Services

Dept. Of Social Services

Dept. Of Social Services

[b]  AppalCART AppalCART (no-show) during the

course of the contract year.  Also no more than 5% of trips should be late for arrival per month (past the scheduled trip arrival time).

the:

on invoices, and will report no-shows daily and 

cancellations on a monthly basis. AppalCART agrees that all charges for no-shows will be separately invoices to the county.

will be promptly notified.Dept. Of Social Services

040312 BCC Meeting

59



Blank Page 
 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

60



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS 

A. Road Names Public Hearing Request  
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Joe Furman will request a public hearing be set for the Board’s April 17, 2012, meeting as 
required by North Carolina Statute 153A-239.1 to officially adopt new private and public road 
names.   
 
Board action is requested.   
 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

61



040312 BCC Meeting

62



040312 BCC Meeting

63



Blank Page 
 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

64



AGENDA  ITEM 7: 

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS 

B.  Bond Claim - Bid Award for Subdivision Paving  
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
County subdivision regulations allow developers to post performance guarantees to allow the 
final plat to be recorded so that lots/units may be sold prior to completion of road construction.  
A bond was accepted for the Lodges at Winkler’s Creek which went into foreclosure 
subsequently requiring the County to claim the bond and solicit bids to complete the road 
construction.   
 
The initial plan called for a retaining wall to provide the necessary turnaround, however based on 
conversations with the current property owners, the turnaround was relocated thus eliminating 
the need for the retaining wall and still meeting the subdivision requirements.   
 
McManus Farms/Moretz Paving submitted the lowest bid in the amount of $34,200.  Due to the 
elimination of the retaining wall, McManus Farm’s portion of the bid was removed thus leaving 
Moretz Paving still the lowest bidder for the road construction in the amount of $21,000.  Mr. 
Furman will request the Board accept the bid from Moretz Paving in the amount of $21,000 to 
complete the road construction at the Lodges at Winkler’s Creek. 
 
Board action is requested.   
  

040312 BCC Meeting

65



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Wednesday, March 28, 2012 9:25 AM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle
Subject: bond claim
Attachments: DOC032712.pdf

Deron, 
From time to time, the County accepts performance guarantees, pursuant to the subdivision regulations, that enable a 
developer to record a final plat and sell lots/units prior to completion of required road construction. In virtually all cases, the 
construction is completed and the County releases the guarantee. The County approved and accepted a bond as a guarantee for 
the Lodges at Winkler’s Creek, and subsequently the property went into foreclosure, forcing the County to claim the bond (I did 
this in late 2011). We requested bids for completion of the required construction, and now request the commissioners to make 
the award. In order to accommodate the wishes of the new property owners (purchasers of townhomes), we requested 3 
alternate bids. The original plan called for construction of a retaining wall adjacent to the townhomes, at the end of the county 
standard road, which will be paved from the current end of  paving. The owners have decided they would prefer that the turn‐
around be lower on the road, thereby eliminating the need for the retaining wall. This can be done in a way that satisfies 
subdivision regulation standards. I have discussed this with the bonding company, and the company is fine with this alternate, as 
it will save money.  
 
The bids are attached. The low bidder is McManus Farms/Moretz Paving. Since the retaining wall will not be constructed, 
McManus is removed, leaving Moretz Paving, who is still the low bidder for the county standard road at $21,600.00. I request 
the award be made to Moretz Paving.  All costs, including engineering for the retaining wall and costs for a new recorded plat 
will be reimbursed to the County by the bonding company. 
Joe 
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

66



040312 BCC Meeting

67



040312 BCC Meeting

68



040312 BCC Meeting

69



040312 BCC Meeting

70



040312 BCC Meeting

71



040312 BCC Meeting

72



040312 BCC Meeting

73



040312 BCC Meeting

74



040312 BCC Meeting

75



040312 BCC Meeting

76



040312 BCC Meeting

77



040312 BCC Meeting

78



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  

A.  Monthly Collections Report 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Tax Administrator Kelvin Byrd will present the Monthly Collections Report and be available for 
questions and discussion. 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  

B.  Refunds and Releases 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Byrd will present the Refunds and Releases Report.  Board action is required to accept the 
Refunds and Releases Report. 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  

C.  Board of Equalization and Review Schedule 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Mr. Byrd will discuss the scheduling of the FY 2012 Board of Equalization and Review (E&R).  
Staff requests the Board approve the schedule as presented or provide alternative dates. 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

79



040312 BCC Meeting

80



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

FINANCE MATTERS 

A.  Budget Amendments 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, will review budget amendments as included in your 
packet. 
 
Board approval is requested. 
 
 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

81



 
 

                  W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 

814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
         
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Deron Geouque, County Manager 
FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
SUBJECT: Budget Amendments-FY 2011/12 
DATE:  April 3, 2012 
 
The following budget amendments require approval of the Watauga County Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
103341-349201  Economic Summit Sponsorship   $750 
104920-463000  Economic Development  $750 
 
To recognize sponsorships received to offset expenditures for the Economic Summit hosted by 
EDC.  
 
Account #   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
234310-429000  Other Supplies    $5,500 
233317-343109  Substance Abuse Tax Revenue   $5,500 
 
To fund additional needs within the Narcotics budget per request of Sheriff Hagaman. These are 
state funds received and restricted to law enforcement use. 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

82



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

FINANCE MATTERS 

B.  JCPC Budget Amendments  
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Pierce will present a revised Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) 2011-12 budget.  
The proposal will reallocate $27,871 in funds that were not able to be utilized for the group home 
at Barium Springs among other JCPC programs. 
 
Board action is requested to approve the changes as presented.   
 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

83



                  W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 
   814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
 
M E M O R A N D U M     
 
 
 
 TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
 SUBJECT: JCPC Program Budget Changes 
 DATE: April 3, 2012 
 
 
Attached please find a revised Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 2011-12 Funding Allocation 
form. With no placement this Fiscal Year to the Temporary Shelter/Group Home program at 
Barium Springs, funding for the program has been reallocated to other JCPC programs to avoid 
losing $27,871 in Watauga at risk youth program funding. Project Challenge is recommended for an 
additional $11,436; WYN Youth Resource Center is recommended for an additional $11,435; and 
Blue Ridge Mediation and Restorative Justice is recommended for an additional $5,000. These 
funds can only be used per the existing program agreements.  
 
Board approval of the revised Funding Allocation is requested. 
 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

84



 

$111,170 $33,231      Rate: 30%  

OTHER
# Program Provider DJJDP 

Funding
Local Cash 

County
Local Cash 

Other
Local        In-

Kind
State/ 

Federal 
Total % Non-

DJJDP 
Program 

Revenues

1 JCPC Administrative Funds $400 $400 0%

2 Juvenile Mediation $15,246 $4,574 $19,820 23%

3 Project Challenge $44,450 $13,335  $57,785 23%

4 Rainbow Center/Barium Springs $0 $0   $0 #DIV/0!

5 Youth Resource Center $51,074 $15,322  $66,396 23%

6       $0 #DIV/0!

7       $0 #DIV/0!

8 $0 #DIV/0!

9 $0 #DIV/0!

10 $0 #DIV/0!

   TOTALS: $111,170 $33,231 $0 $0 $0 $144,401 23%

Unallocated Funds $0

County
2011-2012 .

 Chairperson, Juvenile Crime Prevention Council           (Date)

 
Chairperson, Board of County Commissioners             (Date)                        

Watauga County                    
2011-2012     

  Department of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention County Funding Allocation

Available Funds:        $      Local Match:          $

A Program Agreement Form for each program listed below is included as an attachment to the Community Prevention and 
Intervention Plan.

LOCAL FUNDING

The above plan was derived through a planning process by the Watauga
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council and represents the County’s Plan for use of these funds in FY

 

 

040312 BCC Meeting

85



Blank Page 
 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

86



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

FINANCE MATTERS 

C.  Proposed Audit Contract for FY 12 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:    
 
Enclosed in your packets is a copy of the contract from Bryce Holder, CPA, PA, for conducting 
the FY 2012 financial audit.  Due to the County preparing its own financial statements, the 
contract was able to be reduced by $8,000.  Ms. Pierce will be available to answer questions.   
 
Board approval is requested to accept Bryce Holder CPA’s contract in the amount of $45,400. 
 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

87



                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 
 814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M     
 
 
 
 TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
 SUBJECT: Bryce Holder, CPA, PA Contract for FY 11-12  
 DATE: March 27, 2012 
 
 
Attached is a copy of the fiscal year 2011-12 audit contract with Bryce Holder, CPA, PA. 
This contract reflects a reduction of $8,000 in the proposed fee as the Finance 
Department is transitioning to preparing the financial statements as planned. The funding 
for this contract is requested in the Finance Department budget.  
 
Board approval for the contract amount not to exceed $45,400. 

040312 BCC Meeting

88



040312 BCC Meeting

89



040312 BCC Meeting

90



040312 BCC Meeting

91



040312 BCC Meeting

92



040312 BCC Meeting

93



040312 BCC Meeting

94



040312 BCC Meeting

95



040312 BCC Meeting

96



040312 BCC Meeting

97



040312 BCC Meeting

98



040312 BCC Meeting

99



Blank Page 
 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

100



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Blowing Rock VFD Request for Support of Lease Purchase Agreement 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
The Blowing Rock Fire and Rescue Squad requested a letter of support from the County to assist 
in obtaining financing to purchase equipment for their operations.  Due to Blowing Rock’s 
inability to present the request at the Board’s March 20, 2012, meeting, staff prepared the 
necessary letter and requested the Chairman’s signature in order for the department to not 
experience reduce cost savings as a result of delayed approval.  The letter confirms that they 
receive both County and fire tax funding.  The letter of support does not obligate the County.   
 
Historically these requests are approved by the Board and therefore approval is requested after 
the fact. 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

101



040312 BCC Meeting

102



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 22, 2012 
 
 
 
United Financial of North Carolina, Inc. 
58 Wilkie Way 
Fletcher, NC 28732 
 
Gentlemen: 
 
The funding for Blowing Rock Fire & Rescue has been progressive as per the following 
schedule:   
 
Fiscal Year Actual or Anticipated Tax Revenue Assessed Valuation Rate Per $100 Value 
 
2012  $465,000    $903,000,000  $.05 
 
2011  $465,631    $903,072,300  $.05 
 
2010  $450,163    $900,326,000  $.05 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Deron T. Geouque 
County Manager 
Watauga County 
 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
David Blust 
Jim Deal 
Tim Futrelle 

COUNTY MANAGER 
Deron T. Geouque 

 
COUNTY ATTORNEY 

Stacy C. Eggers, IV 
 
 

Administration Building, Suite 205 ● 814 West King Street ● Boone, North Carolina 28607 

Telephone 828-265-8000 
TDD 1-800-735-2962 
Voice 1-800-735-8262 

County of Watauga 
040312 BCC Meeting

103



Blank Page 
 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

104



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B. Watauga Humane Society Funding Request 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Jan Watson, Watauga Humane Society President, and Ms. Jenny Miller, Watauga Humane 
Society Capital Campaign Coordinator, will request additional funding for the care of animals 
housed at the Humane Society Shelter.  Upon completion of the Humane Society facility and 
acceptance of animals, the County loaned four hundred thousand dollars ($400,000.00) to the 
Humane Society to apply toward the cost of facility construction.  In exchange for the services 
provided by the Humane Society, the County was to pay the Humane Society seventy five 
thousand ($75,000.00) each year with a CPI escalator.  The initial term of the agreement was 
twenty-five (25) years with automatic renewal periods of one (1) year thereafter unless either 
party sends the other written notice of its decision not to renew the Agreement within ninety (90) 
days prior to its expiration. 
 
A promissory note along with the right of first refusal was secured for the County’s $400,000 
investment for the twenty-five (25) year period should the Humane Society decide to sell the 
property, default on its primary loan for the construction of the building, or terminate the 
agreement prior to the twenty-five (25) year period.  The Humane Society began accepting 
animals from the County in October of 2011, thus the yearly maintenance fee was prorated to 
$56,250.  The County incurred expenses from July 1, 2011 through September 2011 for shelter 
operations until the Humane Society assumed control.  The agreement allows the maintenance 
fee to be disbursed in quarterly installments, however in an effort to assist the Humane Society 
the maintenance fee was provided in a lump sum payment.   
 
The Manager’s understanding is that had the agreement with the County not been executed, the 
Humane Society may have not been able to obtain the financing for their facility.  Prior to the 
agreement the County was averaging 1,500 animals a year.  Budget totals for Animal Care and 
Control for Fiscal Years 2008-09, 2009-10, and 2010-11 were $197,730, $144,585, $147,915, 
respectively.   
 
At present time the Humane Society has submitted a budget request for $225,000 for Fiscal Year 
2012-13, or a $150,000 increase over the current agreement. 
 
 
 
 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

105



Blank Page 
 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

106



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMIRNISTRATIVE MATTERS 

C. Boards and Commissions 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
During the regular Town Council meeting held on February 14, 2012, the Blowing Rock Town 
Council recommended Ms. Brenda Fairbetter to serve as the ETJ member of their Planning 
Board and Mr. Terry Story to serve as the ETJ member of their Board of Adjustment. 
 
The above are second readings; therefore, action may be taken if so desired. 
 
 
 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

107



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Anita.Fogle
Sent: Wednesday, February 22, 2012 10:26 AM
To: 'Sharon Greene'
Subject: RE: Recommendations

Thanks Sharon! 
 
I will place these recommendations on the agenda for our next meeting.  We just had a meeting last night, so our next one is 
March 6th.  Our Board traditionally  holds two readings prior to voting on Boards & Commissions appointments, so that may 
occur at their 2nd meeting in March, which will be the 20th.  I will let you know as soon as action is taken. 
 
I hope you are having a great week! 
 
Thanks, 
Anita 
 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
Watauga County 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 
Boone, North Carolina  28607 
828.265.8000 Phone 
828.264.3230 Fax 
Anita.Fogle@watgov.org 
www.WataugaCounty.org  
 

From: Sharon Greene [mailto:brtownclerk@bellsouth.net]  
Sent: Tuesday, February 21, 2012 5:18 PM 
To: anita.fogle@ncmail.net 
Subject: Recommendations 
 
 
Hi Anita, 
 
I’m not sure who I need to let know, but… the following people were recommended to serve at the ETJ members of our Planning 
Board and Board of Adjustment during the regular Town Council meeting held on February 14, 2012.  Brenda Fairbetter 
was  recommended to serve at the ETJ member of the Planning Board and Terry Story was recommended to serve on the Board 
of Adjustment.  If you need further information, please let me know. 
 
Thanks 
Sharon 

040312 BCC Meeting

108



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

D.  Announcements 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
You have been invited to attend “Aarons After Hours” scheduled for April 19, 2012, from 7:30 
P.M. to 8:30 P.M. for an opportunity to become acquainted with Aaron's Sales and Lease and to 
see first-hand the service they provide to the community. 
 
The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners’ (NCACC) District Meeting is 
scheduled for April 12, 2012, at the Holiday Inn Express in Wilkesboro.  Tentative meeting 
times are 5:30 P.M. to 800: P.M. 
 
Two public hearings are scheduled for the April 17, 2012, Board meeting to allow citizen 
comment on both the Community Development Block Grant Small Cities Catalyst Program 
application on behalf of the Hospitality House and the proposed refinancing for the new high 
school. 
 
The Project on Aging invites the Board to attend a Volunteer Recognition Breakfast on 
Thursday, April 19, 2012, at the Dan’l Boone Inn from 8:30 A.M. to 10:30 A.M.  If you wish to 
attend please notify Anita by April 13, 2012, who will be happy to RSVP on your behalf. 
 
A tour of the new Humane Society facility which was recently constructed through a partnership 
with the County is scheduled for April 27, 2012, from 12:00 noon until 1:30 P.M. 
 
Appalachian State would like to invite the Commissioners, School Board members, and Town 
Council members, to campus on May 7, 2012, from 9:00 A.M. to 2:00 P.M.  The purpose of the 
meeting would be to provide an update on major activities taking place on campus such as 
construction projects, strategic priorities, state funding and its impact on the campus, and major 
initiatives involving the local community.  The day would consist of a tour, lunch, and meeting 
with University officials.  They would like for this to become an annual event. 
 
  

040312 BCC Meeting

109



040312 BCC Meeting

110



040312 BCC Meeting

111



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Time has been reserved to allow citizen comment to address the Board for any area of interest or 
concern. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 12: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 13: 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 
 

040312 BCC Meeting

112


	Agenda
	Approval of the Minutes
	Approval of the April 3, 2012, Agenda
	Proposed Amendments to the Ambulance Franchise Agreement
	Maintenance Matters
	A.  Presentation of Lighting Upgrade Proposal
	B.  Bid Award Request for Paving Repairs

	Proposed Contract Between Department of Social Services and AppalCART
	Planning and Inspections Matters
	A.  Road Names Public Hearing Request
	B.  Bond Claim - Bid Award for Subdivision Paving

	Tax Matters
	A. Monthly Collections Report
	B.  Refunds and Releases
	C.  Board of Equalization and Review Schedule

	Finance Matters
	A.  Budget Amendments
	B.  JCPC Budget Amendments
	C.  Proposed Audit Contract for FY 12

	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Blowing Rock VFD Request for Support of Lease Purchase Agreement
	B.  Watauga Humane Society Funding Request
	C.  Boards and Commissions
	D.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session



